
BOH Minutes 11-12-13  Page 1 of 2 

Board of Health 
Meeting Minutes 

November 12, 2013 
  
Members Present:    Staff Present: 
Tom Kinzer, Co-Chair    Heidi Porter, Director 
Bea Brunkhorst, Co-Chair   Mary Firestone, Recording Secretary 
Sarah Thompson     
Kevin Wormstead  
Anita Raj 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:04 P.M.   Mr. Kinzer chaired. 
 
Minutes: 
Dr. Brunkhorst moved to accept the minutes of the October 7, 2013 meeting as written. Ms. Thompson 
seconded the motion.  Vote count: 5-0 
 
Board of Health Action Items --- Old and New Business: 
Liaison Assignments: 
Dr. Brunkhorst will attend an Institutional Biosafety Committee meeting at Celgene on December 11, 
2013. 
Mr. Wormstead was unable to attend the Youth and Family Services Committee meeting due to illness.  
Ms. Raj suggested that she take over liaison with that committee when Mr. Wormstead’s term expires. 
Mr. Kinzer said that at the Planning Board meeting, the Comprehensive Plan was discussed.  He 
suggested that all members read the plan which will be online before the end of November. 
Ms. Raj noted that it will be possible to view the November 4 town meeting on Bedford Cable Access 
Television (BCAT). 
Mr. Kinzer said that he and Ms. Porter will attend the Hanscom AFB RAB meeting on November 13. 
Dr. Brunkhorst said that the Bedford Citizen reported that Jackie Surpprise, Bedford High School 
Physical Education Department, will re-start the Wellness Committee meetings. 
Ms. Porter reported on the Community Partnership meeting.  There are new members on the 
committee, including Pam Brown for the Bedford Chamber of Commerce.  She also reported on a 
meeting on Safe Routes to School; she said that it seems to be 90% sure that the town will receive a 
Massachusetts Department of Transportation grant for improve the intersection of Mudge Way and 
Great Road.  At this point, no funds have been allocated in the town budget for implementation of the 
Great Road Master Plan.  She said Healthy Bedford received a $25,000 implementation grant from 
CHNA for the Pedestrian Master Plan and to explore local transportation options.  There has been 
more discussion about a local bus service.  Carla Olson met with personnel in Acton and Lexington for 
information on their local bus services.  There have also been discussions with the Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation Authority (MBTA). 
Mr. Kinzer said that meetings of the Financial Coordinating Committee meetings have not started yet. 
Dr. Brunkhorst noted that there was an article on deer containment in the Globe West.  She said that 
Sudbury had a deer containment program for 10 years.  Ms. Porter said that she may bring in a public 
speaker such as Sam Telford for a presentation on animal vectors of Lyme disease, possibly in the 
Spring.  She noted that the accumulation of fallen leaves is a risk factor for ticks.  She said that deer 
culling is highly controversial, but some communities do allow bow-and-arrow hunting. 
Mr. Kinzer, Ms. Raj, and Ms. Thompson attended the annual conference of the Massachusetts 
Association of Health Boards (MAHB) and said that the sessions were excellent.  For instance, some 
“private” clubs that had been established (which are actually public because they sell tickets) which 
allow smoking; a historical case had been brought on the grounds that such smoking is a nuisance.  
Attorney Cheryl Sbarra spoke on legalization of marijuana.  Establishment of Registered Medical 



Dispensaries (RMDs) may proceed. So far there have been 200 applications for RMDs; 150 of these
applications are in Phase 2. The application fee is $30,000. The state will license at least one RMD in
each county. Some arrangements will be made for patients with financial/medical difficulty who
cannot travel to the RMD. Brownies containing marijuana will not be classified as food. Mr. Kinzer
said that he had attended sessions of TB, on social media, and 2 sessions on large scale disasters. He
noted that the town website has a page on family assistance in mass disasters. It was agreed that the
MAHB meetings were very worthwhile.
Itwas noted that mange is on the rise; family pets may bring the disorder into the home.
The expected Board vacancy, in the position currently occupied by Mr. Wormstead, was discussed;
Mr.Kinzer knows of a possible candidate.
Ms. Raj said that she had attended the Bedford Citizen's meeting for possible writers.

Director's Report:
Ms. Porter reported on flu vaccinations; 965 people have been vaccinated as of November 12 and more
sessions are scheduled.
On the hoarding front, a pre-training survey of first responders is being conducted. An application will
be made for a $15,000 CHNA collaborative grant to fund a case worker's salary.
Bedford with other Middlesex Tick Task force communities (Concord, Carlisle, Lincoln and Acton)
and in conjunction with the University of Massachusetts Laboratory of Medical Zoology, are planning
to submit an application for a grant to let residents know whether a tick that bit them was carrying
Lyme disease or other Tick Borne Illness (TBI) and to build a state-wide surveillance database to track
the prevalence of various TBIs.
A $10,000 grant will be applied for to promote healthy eating with a focus on dining out which offers
restaurants an opportunity to make favorite items fit the healthy eating program. At the recent Flavors
of Bedford event sponsored by the Chamber of Commerce, 22 establishments participated.
The Police Department is working on getting a kiosk for year-round medical sharps disposal.
Ms. Thompson said that she is involved in a research program at the Brigham & Women's/Faulkner
Hospital on teaching nurses about providing opioid drug information at the discharge of patients.

Board members discussed briefly the issue of whether the school nurses should be transferred to the
school department. The School Committee has not responded to BOH communications on the issue to
date.

Dr. Brunkhorst moved to adjourn the meeting; Mr. Wormstead seconded the motion. Vote count: 5-0.
The meeting was adjourned at 9:01 P.M.

The next meetings of the Board will take place on December 2, 2013 and January 6 and February 3,
2014

Kevin Wormstead

BOH Minutes 11-12-13 Page 2 of2


